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go, would instead change that marking to PR.
THE CHAIR:

Without objection, so ordered.

Mr. Clerk.
THE CLERK:

(Inaudible)Jcall the Senate Calendar for
Wednesday, April 29, 2009, calendar page 3, Favorable
Reports, Calendar Number 132, File Number 77, Senate

Bill Number 312, An Act Concerning the Sale of Cider

and Apple Wine on the Internet, favorable report of
the Committee on General Law. Clerk is in possession
of two amendments.
SENATOR LOONEY:

Mr. President, I'd yield to Senator Colapietro to
bring out the bill.
THE CHAIR:

Senator Colapietro.
SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

Thank you, Mr. President. They snuck up on me,
I'm not even sure which bill we're doing here.
THE CHAIR:

We are on Calendar 132, Senate Bill Number 312,
sir.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO:
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Cider and apple wine -- I move the Joint
Committee's favorable report and passage of the bill.
THE CHAIR:

Speaking on approval of the bill, sir, would you
like to remark further?

SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

Thank you, Mr. President. This bill does three
major things. It one, it changes wine -- I mean,
apple cider -- hard cider and apple wine into the same
rules that wine does. The other one is that the farm
wineries now have to operate in the same hours as we
allow the wineries -- I mean the package stores to do.
And the third part was -- I had it right here -- that
we allowed the festivals to have their annual festival
in-state. And we also corrected the part about where ‘
the law says that we have to treat out-of-state
wineries the same as the in-state wineries, and what
this bill does is correct that and comply with the
law. I move the -- if there isn't any discussion, I
move the bill.

THE CHAIR:
Thank you, sir.
Will you remark? Will you remark further?

Senator Looney.
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SENATOR LOONEY:

Yes, thank you, Mr. President. Might I inquire
of Senator Colapietro if he intends to offer the
amendment LCO 611172
THE CHAIR:

Senator Colapietro, are you going to send the
amendment now?

SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

I apologize, Mr. President; I apologize Senator
Looney. The amendment is the bill and that is 6111.
THE CHAIR:

So you'd like to call that amendment, sir?
SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

I'd 1like to call that amendment and I already
summarized.

THE CHAIR:

Mr. Clerk.
THE CLERK:

LCO 6111, which will be designated Senate.
Amendment Schedule A, it is offered by Senator
Colapietro of the 31st District, et al.

THE CHAIR:
Senator Colapietro.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO:
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Thank you, Mr. President. I move the amendment.
THE CHAIR:

Please proceed, sir.
SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

I just explained the bill, and the bill is the
amendment -- or the amendment is the bill. And
therefore, if there's any further discussion, I would
be happy to consider it.

THE CHAIR:

So they're one and the same, same and the one?
SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

Right.

THE CHAIR:

Right. Thank you, sir.

Will you remark? Will you remark further on
Senate Amendment A?

Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS:

Thank you, Mr. President. Through you, a
question to the proponent of the amendment.
THE CHAIR:

Senator Colapietro.

SENATOR WITKOS:

Thank you. Through you, Mr. President, although
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there's one permit issued for an out-of-state
permittee, there may be a multitude of perﬁittees that
have to get their own permit to operate this, but
there will be -- for clarification purposes -- only
one out-of-state wine festival with many permittees,
is that correct? Through you, Mr. President.
THE CHAIR:

Senator Colapietro.
SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

Thank you, Mr. President. And thank you for the
question, I think we did correct this problem by
simply saying that the commissioner shall approve only
one in-state and one out-of-state festival.

THE CHAIR:
Senator Witkos.
SENATOR WITKOS:

I thank the Senator for his answer.
THE CHAIR:

Will you remark further on Senate Amendment A?
Will you remark further on Senate Amendment A?

If not, I will try your minds. All those in

favor signify by saying aye.
VOICES:

Aye.
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THE CHAIR:

Opposed, nay.

The ayes have it, Senate Amendment A is adopted.

Will you remark further on Senate Bill 312 as
amended by Senate A?

Senator Colapietro.
SENATOR COLAPIETRO:

Thank you, Mr. President. That amendment becomes
the bill, and I already explained it and we've already -
passed it. And if there's no further discussion on

the bill, I would move this bill to the Consent.

Calendar.
THE CHAIR:

There's a motion on the floor to place Senate
Bill 312 on consent. Seeing no objection, s¢9 ordered,
sir.

Mr. Clerk.
THE CLERK:

Calendar 147, File Number 115, Substitute for

Senate Bill 212, An Act Limiting Cancellation Fees for

Automobile Insurance Policy Holders Who Cancel Their
Policies Mid-Term, favorable report of the Committee
on Insurance. Clerk is in possession of one

amendment.
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Motion is to remove from the foot. Seeing no
objection, so ordered.
SENATOR LOONEY:

Thank you, Mr. President. One item to remove
from the Consent Calendar, calendar page 35, Calendar
367, Senate Bill 785, would move to remove that item
from the Consent Calendar and to mark it PR.

THE CHAIR:

Without objection, so ordered.
SENATOR LOONEY:

Yes, thank you, Mr. President. I would now ask
the Clerklto proceed to calling the Consent Calendar
so we may vote on 1it.

THE CHAIR:

Mr. Clerk, please announce the Consent Calendar.
THE CLERK:

Mr. President, those items placed the first
Consent Calendar begin on calendar page 2; Calendar

Number 525, House Joint Resolution Number 120;

Calendar Number 101, Senate Bill Number 827.

Calendar page 3, Calendar 132, Senate Bill 312;

Calendar 147, Substitute for Senate Bill 212.

Calendar page 5, Calendar Number 237, Substitute

for House Bill 5414.
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Have all Senators voted?

If all Seﬁators have voted, please check the
machine. The machine will be locked, the Clerk will
call the tally.

THE CLERK:

Motion is on adoption of Consent Calendar Number
1. Total number voting, 36; those voting yea, 36;
those voting nay, 0; those absent/not voting, 0.

THE CHAIR:

Consent Calendar Number 1 passes.

Senator Looney.
SENATOR LOONEY:

Thank you, Mr. President. Mr. President, I would
move that all items referred to various committees
from the chamber today be transmitted to those
committees immediately.

THE CHAIR:

Without objection, so ordered, sir.
SENATOR LOONEY :

Thank you, Mr. President. Mr. President, also,
would announce that we will be convening tomorrow
about -- at 11:30 a.m., it's our intention to pick up
with bills that had previously been marked "go" today.

So I would move that all items previously marked go
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The State of Connecticut House of Representatives
Calendar for Wednesday, May 6, 2009, on page 42,
Calendar 369, Substitute for House Bill Number 6328,
AN ACT CONCERNING CUSTOMER ACCESS TO REST ROOMS IN
RETAIL ESTABLISHMENTS, favorable report of the
Committee on General Law.

SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Chairman of the General Law Committee,
Representative James Shapiro. Representative Shapiro.

Representative Merrill.

REP. MERRILL (54th):

Yes, Mr. Speaker, move this item be passed
temporarily.
SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Is there objections to this bill being passed
temporarily? Hearing none, this bill is passed
temporarily.

Will the Clerk please call Calendar 5692
THE CLERK:

On page 25, Calendar 569, Senate Bill Number 312,

AN ACT CONCERNING THE SALE OF CIDER AND APPLE WINE ON
THE INTERNET. 1It's amended by Senatée Amendment
Schedule A, favorable report of the Committee on

General Law.
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SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Once again, the Chair of the General Law
Committee, Representative James Shapiro.

REP. SHAPIRO (144th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, I move
acceptance of the joint committee's favorable report
and passage of the bill.

SPEAKER DONOVAN:

The question is on acceptance of the Joint
Committee's favorable report and passage of the bill?
Will you remark, sir?

REP. SHAPIRO (144th):

Yes, Mr. Speaker. This bill does three important
things, it deals with apple cider and apple wine, and
it causes them to be treated for shipment in state and
out of state in the same manner as Connecticut farm
wineries and it's also subject to the same
restrictions. Number two, it permits once a year, our
farm wineries to have a wine festival in state either
held by them or their nonprofit organizations ana one
for farm wineries from outside the state. That's due
to the Sdpreme Court decision in Granholm that
requires us to treat instate and out of state farm

wineries in the same manner. And the third item that
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this bill does is that it moves the farm winery time
of operation from 8:00 p.m. closure to a 9:00 p.m.
closure.

Mr. Speaker, the Clerk is in possession of 61 --
an amendment, 6111, and I ask the Clerk to call it and

I be permitted to summarize.
Deputy Speaker Godfrey in the Chair.

DEPUTY SPEAKER GQDFREY:

Clerk is in possession of LCO Number 6111,
previously designated Senate Amendment Schedule A.
Will the Clerk please call?

THE CLERK:

LCO 6111, Senate Amendment Schedule A offered by

Senator Colapietro, et al.

DEPUTY SPEAKER GODFREY:

The chairman was asked to leave the chamber to
summarize. Is there any objection? Hearing none,
please proceed Representative Shapiro.

REP. SHAPIRO (144th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. As mentioned before, the

slight changes that the Amendment makes from the major

bill are to move the time from 8:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.,
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to permit this wine festival to occur once per year
and also to treat apple cider and apple wine similarly
to other farm wineries. And I would urge adoption of
the amendment.
SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Question is on adoption? Will you reéark? Wwill
' you remark on -- I just note that the board is
incorrect. That should be Senate Amendment Schedule
A.

The House will stand at ease.

Chamber at ease.
DEPUTY SPEAKER GODFREY:

The House will come back to order. Will you
remark further?

Distinguished Ranking Member of the General Law
Committee, Representative Bacchiochi.

REP. BACCHIOCHI (52nd):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker:. I just rise in suéport
of the amendment. This was -- came unanimously out of
our committee and with a bipartisan effort, so I urge
my colleagues to support the amendment.

DEPUTY SPEAKER GODFREY:

Thank you, madam.
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Will you remark further on Senate Amendment
Schedule A? If not, let me try your minds. All those
in favor signify by saying, aye.

REPRESENTATIVES:

Aye.

DEPUTY SPEAKER GODFREY:

Opposed, nay.

The ayes have it. The Amendment is adopted.

Will you remark further on the bill as amended?
Representative Shapiro.
REP. SHAPIRO (144th):

Yes, thank you, Mr. Speaker. I would request .

that this item be moved to the consent calendar.

DEPUTY SPEAKER GODFREY:

Is there objection? Hearing none, this item will

be moved to the consent calendar.

The Clerk please call Calendar Number 342?
THE CLERK:

On page 41, Calendar 342, substitute for House

Bill Number 6496, AN ACT CONCERNING GREEN CLEANING

PRODUCTS IN SCHOOLS, favorable report of the Committee
on Appropriations.
SPEAKER DONOVAN:

The distinguished Chairman of the Education
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SPEAKER DONOVAN:
Good evening, Representative.

REP. OLSON (46th):

We're now going to be voting on the Consent SB q
05
Calendar. There were several items moved to the S‘b 1136
Consent Calendar yesterday, items 262, 580, 587 and 3 |l4|.

588.

Earlier today we moved Item 569 to the Consent
Calendar, and that completes the Consent Calendar for
today. Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Motion before us is passage of the bills on
today's Consent Calendar. Remark? Remark? If not,
staff and guests please come to the well of the House.
Members take their seats. The machine will be open.
THE CLERK:

The House of Representatives is voting by roll

call. Members to the chamber. The House is voting

today's consent calendar by roll call. Members to the
chamber.
SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Have all the members voted? Have all the members
voted? Have all the members voted? Have all the

members voted? Representative Mioli.
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Please check the board to make sure your vote has

been properly cast. If all of the members have voted,
the machine will be locked. Hold it.

The machine will be locked and the Clerk will
take a tally. Will the Clerk please announce the
tally? |
THE CLERK:

On today's Consent Calendar:

Total Number Voting 142
Necessary for Passage 72
Those voting Yea 142
Those voting Nay 0

Those absent and not voting 9
SPEAKER DONOVAN:

Consent Calendar passes.

Representative Olson.
REP. OLSON (46th):

Thank you Mr. Speaker. I move to suspend the
rules for the immediate transmittal of Senate Bill
1092, which we just recently voted on, to the
Governor. Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

SPEAKER DONOVAN:
The motion is for suspension of rules for

immediate transmittal of Senate Bill 1092 to the
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property that says turn in your unwanted car
for -- you know, to benefit us. I'm just
concerned that if this goes forward that that
would prohibit that. And I don't think that
that's what you're looking for.

FRED BATES: No.

SENATOR WITKOS: As long as the end result is that
it goes to a licensed junkyard dealer --

FRED BATES: Right. We're the licensed haulers for
most of these other donation places, and it's
one of us, one or another, that goes around
picking up for them. They don't advertise, We
will pick up your junk car, because they have
no trucks to pick these things up, so they --
they mostly call us, and we deal with them.

SENATOR WITKOS: Okay, so as long as the end person
that receives that vehicle is a licensed
recycler --

FRED BATES: Correct.

SENATOR WITKOS: -- then that's -- that's all that
you care about?

FRED BATES: Correct.

SENATOR WITKOS: Okay, thank you. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

REP. SHAPIRO: Okay, thank you very much.

FRED BATES: Thank you very much for your time. I
appreciate your time.

REP. SHAPIRO: All right, next up is Senator Harris
and Representative Piscopo.

SENATOR HARRIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good HB5 [
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afternoon Chairman Shapiro, Chairman
Colapietro, Ranking Members Bacchiochi and
Witkos.

I'll just briefly kind of introduce things and
then turn it over to my friend K John here. We
are coming to support on your agenda and thank
you for raising House Bills 5116, which is
Number 12, and Senate Bill 312, Number 5 on
your agenda. It involves hatrd cider and apple
wine, but that really shouldn't be the focus.
What I'd like to do is turn your attention
quickly to what this is really about.

We often talk in this building about making
the State of Connecticut more business
friendly. We talk about using technology to
make us more competitive in the global economy
and make our local markets more robust. We
also talk a lot about preserving our past, and
that's really what this bill does.

What this -- what these proposals do is try to
create a level playing field so that the two
cider mills that you're going to hear from,
you'll hear from the Hogan Cider Mill in our
district in Burlington and from Clyde Cider
Mill, which I believe is in Senator Maynard's
district -- is that correct? -- Senator
Maynard's district, can be able to do all that
we said, be better competitive as businesses,
be able to use technology, the Internet, to do
so, and to preserve the past.

What we're doing is saying that we want to

give these mills the same powers under the law
to sell their product, hard cider and apple
wine, through the Internet that we give ‘
currently now to farm wineries in the state of
Connecticut. And these are small family-owned
businesses that have a deep-rooted tradition
and connection to our past. The one in

000013
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Burlington, it's been 97 years since the farm
began producing cider, and while a lot has
changed in that time, the historic structures,
the tourist attraction, the business, the
history ;hat.we all speak so much about has
remained there for nearly a century.

So, simply said, a lot of times people will

look at hard cider and apple wine, which is a
good thing, we can all rejoice in that aspect,
this bill really is about a much 1érger issue,
and I hope that-the conmmittee will support it.

PISCOPO: Thank you Chairs and Ranking
Members, Members of the Committee for raising
this. We really appreciate it.

The Senator summed it up very well. The only
thing I can add is that Connecticut's climate
and soils is conducive to growing the best
apples in the world, and this is some way that
they can expand their business. And if
there's any way we can help with -- with
drafting this legislation or massaging it in
any way, please let us know. I think it's --
it's done just to help these small cider
mills, and it would go a long way to helping
them expand their business a little bit and
survive. Thank you again.

SHAPIRO: Thank you. A quick question. You
were talking about equalizing the treatment. of
the cider mills with the farm wineries,
particularly with respect to shipment. Are
you also looking for it with respect to the
other things farm wineries can do, tastings
and selling on site, things of that nature?

.PISCOPO: Well, they already do that. They

already have the ability to sell on site and
offer tastings, so ‘all we are is -- yes,
Mr. Chairman, all we are is asking just for
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that ability to market their wine.
REP. SHAPIRO: Thank you.

SENATOR HARRIS: Mr. Chairman, there are 28
licensed farm wineries now in the state of
Connecticut that can do this, so again, we're
just asking for a level playing field as
Representative Piscopo said.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO: I was going to ask basically
the same question that Representative Shapiro
did, and that was that if it was put and
considered like another wine, would you be
opposed to going under the same laws as the
wine goes?

SENATOR HARRIS: Exactly.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO: That's pretty much what I was
going to ask him.

SENATOR HARRIS: Thank you. One thing, if I could
clarify, Mr. Chairman, is that in the proposal
that I submitted, 312, I wasn't as artful in
submitting it as Representative Piscopo, and I
just put hard cider, but it's important that
when the statute hopefully will be amended it
will include both hard cider and apple wine.
They're two separate products.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO: Do you have a sample? I never

tried ‘that before.

I believe Representative Witkos had a
question?

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank

you both for testifying today. There is some
written testimony in opposition to both of

your bills, and do you know approximately how
much of the product that we're talking about,

00005
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because the opposition states it doesn't go
through the (inaudible) system, are we talking
about a large, large quantity of product that
you anticipate?

PISCOPO: No, Senator. It's a very, very
small amount. It's pretty -- pretty low level
of production. The people coming up after me
in the public sector will be able to tell you
exactly how many gallons or -- I don't know
how they measure it, quarts or gallons, that
they do produce. But, no, it's a very small
amount, and we are looking forward to sitting
down with any letters -- stakeholders of
opposition to try and work out something with
them. They seem very willing to sit down with
us and- aid us in getting this legislation
through.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you.

SENATOR HARRIS: Senator, that was a very good

question. I want to be clear that this is
really just trying to expand the retail market
of these already existing businesses, again,
to help them be more competitive, to help them
preserve our past by giving thém another
source of income that's out there for
everybody else. And the bill would limit, I
believe, and you can get more specifics on
there, the Internet sales to five gallons per
person in a 60-day period. So you're not
talking about someone going on and ordering,
you know, a delivery truck full of this item.
It is a retail purpose, it is small, it's
targeted, but it'll help give them the income
they need to keep themselves competitive and
preserve our past.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you. I want to thank you

because I kind of .went ahead and read the
opposition testimony, so I wanted to make sure
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that you had your side on the record. Thank
you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

SHAPIRO: Further questions from the
committee? Thank you very much, gentlemen.

Senator Caligiuri. On deck is Representative
Widlitz, if she's in the house.

SENATOR CALIGIURI: Good afternoon, Chairman

Shapiro, Senator Colapietro, our Ranking
Members Witkos and Bacchiochi. For the
record, my name is Sam Caligiuri. I'm a State
Senator from the 16th District representing
Cheshire, Southington, Waterbury and Wolcott,
and I'm here today to speak in favor of .Senate
Bill 317, An Act Concerning Fines for the
Willful Violation of Provisions of the Do Not
Call List, and let me begin by thanking the
committee for raising this bill and for
including it in today's public hearing. I
appreciate it a great deal.

Very simply, what this bill would do is
increase the penalty for a willful violation
of our Do Not Call registry laws from the
current level of $5,000 to the federal
standard of $11,000. This came to my

"attention when a constituent contacted me, who

was on the Do Not Call list and who got called
notwithstanding that. I understand that
constituent has filed a complaint with the
Department of Consumer Protection using the
procedure that's available to this person, but
it got me thinking about whether as a matter
of policy the public in Connecticut would be
even better served than they are today by
further strengthening the standard for a
violation of our Do Not Call laws.
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decided at one point that, you know --
SENATOR COLAPIETRO: It's a nicer name, huh?

GARY STEWART: -- we'd rather be a dismantler, you
know, than a junkyard.

REP. SHAPIRO: I will call you whatever you like as
long as we have no further questions.

All right, hearing none, thank you gentlemen
very much.

Next we have Peter Berdon, followed by Ralph
Biondi.

PETER BERDON: Good afternoon, Senator Colapietro,
Senator Shapiro, -- that should be
Representative Shapiro.

My name is Peter Berdon, and I am the
executive director and general counsel of the
Wine and Spirits Wholesalers of Connecticut.
I'm here to testify on three bills today,
Proposed Bill- 312, Proposed Bill 5116, both of
those deal with hard cider and the direct
shipping of hard cider, and then, lastly, bill
516.

We've provided written testimony with respect
to the hard cider legislation. I would like
to make one point that actually was not
contained in my testimony, and I think it's an
important issue that kind of came up in some
of the earlier testimony today.

\
A cider manufacturer has absolutely no limit
under Connecticut.statute as to the amount of
cider that could be produced by that cider
manufacturer. So-there is a distinct
difference between a cider manufacturer and a
“farm winery. A farm'winery in the state has

00011
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to produce their wine from fruit that is grown
at least in part on the -- on the winery
premises. So, therefore, because of the state
of our geography and the amount of open land
and farmland that we have, there is a natural
limit to the size of a farm winery. We've
also put in gallonage caps with respect to
farm-wineries.

As many of you are aware, under the Granholm
decision that came up from the U.S. Supreme
Court in 2005, you have to treat in-state
entities the same as you're going to treat
out-of-state entities. By opening up the
cider manufacturers to sell at all three tiers
within the three-tier system, both -- not only
our in-state cider manufacturers but also
out-of -state cider manufacturers would have

" the same ability to do that, and in fact there

are several lines of mass-produced cider, hard
cider, that is sold through the three-tier
system. By making the proposed change, as I
understand it, those manufacturers would then
be ablée to sell directly into the package
stores or directly to consumers. We see that
as a significant inroad into the three-tier
system. Frankly, we think that sales should

" go through a traditional face-to-face

transaction system as opposed to moving in the
opposite direction, which is the direction of
these two proposed bills. So I'd just like to
add that as part of our testimony with respect
to -- to those bills.

I won't go through our written testimony on
those bills. You'll have that -- you have
that before you.

I would like to point out on the act with
respect to 516, the one concerning farm
wineries, I was somewhat confused. The Act
seems to propose that in-state farm wineries
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and out-of-state farm wineries be permitted to
sell in the same quantities. My reading of
the statute is that that is currently already
in play.

I see that my time is up. I'm happy to answer
any -- any questions that you may have.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO: One is I think -- I think

you're right. I think there was a mistake in
this bill, in the explanation of it, and we're
going to fix that.

The other - thing was I thought you were going
to shock the daylights out of me and come in
here and testify for something.

PETER BERDON: Senator, I would never want to

disappoint your expectations. I would like to
live up to them as best as I possibly can.
Perhaps when there is a bill that would
prevent direct shipping, I would ‘be happy to
come in and testify in favor of that.

In all seriousness, I do see the direct
shipping issue as a serious issue. There are
approximately 1200 licensed package stores in
the state of Connecticut, approximately
another 3500 licensed restaurants, and that is
a defined universe that law enforcement has to
observe in terms of sales to minors, sales to
someone who might be intoxicated. When you
open up sales to home deliveries, you're
talking about over a million point of-
delivery, nearly impossible for any law
enforcement agency to effectively monitor a
million points of entry. And so I quite
honestly think we should be going in the
opposite direcgionp trying to preserve state
taxes, trying to preserve state drops and
require, actually, face-to-facé transactions
through our licensed retailers here in the

000113 .
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state, and I would strongly support that
change and move in that direction.

SENATOR COLAPIETRO: I don't want to disagree with

you, but there are certain -- there's only a
few, but there's certain places that can
deliver to your home, and we can't, by federal
statute, determine the difference between a
local and a -- and a California wine. They
have -- they have the right to ship. And so
we're just complying with the law.

But if you'll remember, if you heard the
testimony, the one question I asked the two
gentlemen who testified for the hard cider was
would you object if we considered it a wine.
And that means they'd go under the same laws
that your wines do. So I thought that was a
valid question, and they seemed to be very
susceptible to that.

PETER BERDON: And actually, Senator, I was here

REP.

for that and I did hear your question, and
that's actually what made me think about the
difference between what it means to be a farm
winery versus what it means to be a cider
manufacturer. A cider manufacturer is just --
it's a manufacturer. There's no natural limit
that would prevent them from producing a
million gallons. They could buy the apples
from anywhere. They could crush the apples
and produce a million gallons and sell it here
in the state direct. That's not the case on
the farm winery side.

So I -- I do see your point, and, you know,
we're happy to talk to folks about that, happy
to work with folks in terms of that, and that
may be -- may be the solution that we end up
at.

SHAPIRO: To address the issue that you just
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raised with respect to the market for hard
cider, and that is potentially limitless, I
would be surprised if that were actually the
case, but what percentage does it currently
comprise of the beverages that you distribute?

PETER BERDON: Perhaps I -- I misspoke or you
didn't understand the statement. It's not
that the market, the consumer demand is
limitless; it's that there is no control over
the production on the supply side.

REP. SHAPIRO: I understand what you said, but I
think there's a natural limit out there
regardless of statutory limitations.

PETER BERDON: There may -- there may be for -- for
cider, but when you talk about other alcohol
products, you're probably not talking about
limits. And so what you're starting to do is
you're starting to erode the system that we
have in place that provides for the controlled
distribution of beverage alcohol.

REP. SHAPIRO: Right, but today we're talking about
cider, and the question on the floor is, what
percentage of the beverages you distribute are
comprised by cider?

PETER BERDON: That -- that statistic I don't have
at hand. I could provide that for you next
week.

REP. SHAPIRO: I'd appreciate that. Thank you. I
believe Senator Witkos has a slew of
questions.

SENATOR WITKOS: No, I don't have any questions,
Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to make a
clarification on the Bill 516 was -- was asked
for by myself, and there was a drafting
problem when it was initially proposed as a
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language, but there is somebody that will be
here to testify, five or six people down the
list, that will kind of give you a better idea
of what -- what direction we're going with
that language.

PETER BERDON: And I appreciate that. I was up
late last night trying to make sure that I
wasn't missing something because I thought I
had it right, and I'm comforted to know that
at least I wasn't missing the issue on the --
on the gallonage thing. I think I made my
point point in our written testimony with
respect to the gift baskets.

REP. SHAPIRO: Thank you very much, Peter.

PETER BERDON: Great. Thank you very much for your
time.

REP. SHAPIRO: Ralph Biondi, followed by Annette
Miner and Harold Miner. I'm guessing you're a
team.

RALPH BIONDI: Good afternoon Co-Chair Colapietro,
Co-Chair Shapiro and members of the joint
committee on general law. My name is Ralph
Biondi. I'm a general certified appraiser
with the firm of Biondi & Rosengrant in
Waterbury, Connecticut. I am here today on
behalf of the Connecticut Chapter of the
Appraisal Institute to testify on Proposed
Bill 303. :

As background, the Appraisal Institute is a
global membership association of professional
real estate appraisers with 25,000 members
with 400 years in Connecticut. Members of the
Appraisal Institute benefit from an array of
professional education and advocacy programs
and hold prestigious designations in the field
of property valuation. Members of our chapter
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saying that we don't do enough in Connecticut
homegrown, and I'm glad to see you were able
to take some time away from your business and
your family to come up here and testify before
us. Thank you.

SHAPIRO: Thank you very much. Theresa,
followed by -- is it David Roache?

DAVID ROACHE: Roache.

THERESA CLIFFORD DUNLOP: Hello. Good afternoon.

Thank you for having us-here today. My name
is Theresa Clifford Dunlop, and my husband and
I own Hogan Cider Mill in Burlington,
Connecticut.

Hogan Cider Mill was, established by Morris and
Richard -Hogan on Hogan Family Farm in 1912.

We are here today to ask for your support to
help us step from that time into the 21st
century by allowing us to sell our hard cider
and apple wine on the Internet as proposed by
Bill HB 5116 and SB 00312.

We who hold the fort of hard cider licenses in
this state are asking for the same rights and
privileges which this body has already granted
to the 28 licensed farm wineries in the state
of Connecticut. We are a small, family-owned
business who produces less than 1 percent of
the state's alcohol products. We're asking
only for a level playing field with those who
produce similar products in our state. We
need to reach out and expand our retail market
beyond those who can find their way to our
doors so that we're allowed to keep those
doors open. We need to service those visitors
who only are visiting our area but want to
take a little bit of Connecticut home with
them.
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Safeguards have already been placed into the
existing bill to limit the volume of sales to
no more than five gallons, which is about two
cases, to any specific individual in a 60-day
period. We are attempting to expand our
retail market only.

In the 97 years since this farm has produced
cider, much has changed in the state of
Connecticut, but if you look at the beautiful
barns that retain the rural charm, that is
treasured by both the residents of Connecticut
and those who come to visit Connecticut. Each
year thousands of families come into our cider
mill. I can't tell you how many times a day I
hear, "I'm so glad that you're here. This is
my grandchild. This is my -- my grandchild's
grandchild."

There's been thousands of teenagers who have
had their first job working at the cider mill.
They develop a different set of values from
being there. It's important, I think, for us
in this state to retain what is good and
beautiful about Connecticut by allowing us to
hold on to the past as we step into the
future. Thank you.

SHAPIRO: Thank you very much. A quick
question, which I could have asked earlier.
You've been in business for 97 years, I think
you said, the other farm 127 years. Are you
in danger of producing a million gallons a
year --

THERESA CLIFFORD DUNLOP: I wish.

REP.

SHAPIRO: -- as previously asked before --

THERESA CLIFFORD DUNLOP: I wish.

REP.

SHAPIRO: -- in all those years?
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THERESA CLIFFORD DUNLOP: I have no idea where that
statement came from, and I think it.

REP. SHAPIRO: 1It's a hypothetical, but we're --

THERESA CLIFFORD DUNLOP: But even so, it's
frightening, and I think it's wrong to use
that kind of language to discourage exactly, I
think, what we're trying to preserve in the
state of Connecticut.

REP. SHAPIRO: Thank you very much. Questions from
the committee? Representative Nicastro.

REP. NICASTRO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I just wanted to thank you very much for
coming in and testifying. I mean, I know
Burlington well, very well, and I go back for
many, many years, and I appreciate where
you're coming from on this, and I hear what
you're saying. You need the right to be able
to compete, and I feel that your testimony
here that you've left, it says it all here. A
job well done. I wanted to compliment you on
that. Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

REP. SHAPIRO: Further questions? No? Thank you
very much for your testimony.

‘David Roache, followed, I believe, by Diana
and Stephen, I believe it's Hendersen,
although it's written in small handwriting.

DAVID ROACHE: I want to have Phil Benoit, who is a
licensed board member, sit with me, if that's

okay.

Good afternoon, Senators Colapietro and
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WINE AND SPIRITS WHOLESALERS OF CONNECTICUT, INC.

PETER A. BERDON GEORGE MONTANO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PRESIDENT EMERITUS
GENERAL COUNSEL
February 5§, 2009
TESTIMONY OF
WINE AND SPIRITS WHOLESALERS OF CONNECTICUT
Before

THE GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE

Opposing:

Proposed S.B. No. 312 AN ACT CONCERNING THE SALE OF HARD CIDER VIA THE
INTERNET. (Calendar item 5)

Proposed S.B. No. 516 AN ACT CONCERNING FARM WINERIES. (Calendar item 10)

Proposed H.B. No. 5116 AN ACT CONCERNING THE SALE AND SHIPMENT OF HARD
CIDER AND APPLE WINE. (Calendar item 12)

The members of the Wine and Spirits Wholesalers of Connecticut (“WSWC”) oppose
Proposed S.B. No. 312 AN ACT CONCERNING THE SALE OF HARD CIDER VIA THE
INTERNET and Propoesed H.B, No. S116 AN ACT CONCERNING THE SALE AND
SHIPMENT OF HARD CIDER AND APPLE WINE. While most beverage alcohol products
are distributed through the Three Tier System, products manufactured by Connecticut Cider
Manufacturers are an exception to the rule. Connecticut General Statutes Section 30-16(c)
provides, in pertinent part:

“A manufacturer permit for cider not exceeding six per cent alcohol by volume and apple
wine not exceeding fifteen per cent alcohol by volume shall allow the manufacture,
storage, bottling and wholesale distribution and sale at retail of such cider and apple wine
to permittees and nonpermittees in this state as may be permitted by law...” (emphasis
added)

Thus, a Connecticut Cider Manufacturer is currently permitted to operate at all three levels of the
Three Tier System, and therefore has a competitive advantage over other manufacturers,
wholesalers, package stores, restaurants and bars. Only Farm Wineries and Brew Pubs enjoy
such similar competitive advantages as granted by statute.

Expanding the privileges of in-state Cider Manufactures will, pursuant to the United
States Supreme Court’s holding in the Granholm case', necessitate a similar expansion of

1 Granholm v. Heald, 544 US 460 (2005). The Court in Granholm held that the Dormant Commerce Clause of the
United States Constitution prohibited states from treating wine produced within the state differently than wine
produced outside of the state.

132 TEMPLE STREET » NEW HAVEN, CT 06510
Telephone (203) 624-9900 Fax (203) 624-9870 www.wswc.org
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privileges to out-of-state producers. Connecticut wholesalers and retailers have already
suffered from the recent legislative changes which have enabled the intemet and mail sales of
wines. Due to the inherent under reporting of interstate sales and the inability to audit such sales
there is scant actual data; however, such sales are estimated to be 10% of all wine sales with half
of those sales not being report to the appropriate state regulating bodies.

Secondly, because it is nearly impossible for local police and other law enforcement
officials to monitor whether or not an alcoholic beverages delivered to the home or work place
are being delivered to a person over the age of 21 and that the excise and sales taxes have been
paid. There are approximately 1200 licensed package stores within the state and over One
Million households. By permitting internet sales of cider within the state, the points at which
police will have to monitor such sales will increase nearly 850 times —an impossible task.

Lastly, the WSWC believes that the appropriate regulatory goal should be to closely
control and regulate the sale and distribution of beverage alcohol so as to prevent sales to minors,
elimmate drunk driving, preserve state tax revenue (both excise and sales taxes) and retain and
grow Conriecticut jobs. The WSWC has demonstrated its commitment to these goals through its
Community Relations Program whose mission it is to stamp out underage drinking and drunk
driving. To date the CRP has: trained over 650 servers, aired over 1000 PSA spots (both radio
and TV) and organized 5 significant public service campaigns such as, “Boat Safe Boat Sober”
and “Holiday Tips.” These proposed bills, while facially they may appear to have limited
impact, are a move in the opposite direction from these objectives.

The members of the Wine and Spirits Wholesalers of Connecticut (“WSWC”) oppose
Proposed S.B. No. 516 AN ACT CONCERNING FARM WINERIES for three reasons. First,
the proposed bill seek to equalize the limits that an in-state and out-of-state wineries can sell to
consumers. It appears that such limits are already equal and thus the WSWC is unclear as to
why any such revision is required. The Farm Winery Permit (CGS Sec 30-17(e)) and the Out-of-
State Shipper Permit (used by out of state wineries to import wine into Connecticut, CGS Sec.
30-18 and 30-18a) all set the limit as follows: “...not ship more than five gallons of wine in any
two-month period to any person in this state ...”

Second, it seems unfair to prohibit package stores, who compete with farm wineries for
retail sales from selling gift baskets with food items? and yet grant such privilege to farm
wineries.

Third, as the WSWC noted above with respect to the expansion of cider to internet sales,
the WSWC believes that the appropriate regulatory goal should be to closely control and regulate
the sale and distribution of beverage alcohol so as to prevent sales to minors, eliminate drunk
driving, preserve state tax revenue (both excise and sales taxes) and retain and grow Connecticut
jobs. The WSWC has demonstrated its commitment to these goals through its Community
Relations Program whose mission it is to stamp out underage drinking and drunk driving. To

% pA 05-274

® CGS Sec. 30-20 *“...such [package] store may sell ... (4) gift packages of alcoholic liquor shipped into the state by
a manufacturer or out-of-state shipper, which may include a nonalcoholic item in the gift package that may be any
item, except food or tobacco products, provided the dollar value of the nonalcoholic items does not exceed the dollar
value of the alcoholic items of the package...”
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Good Morning Senator Thomas Colapietro, Representative Jim Shapiro, Senator
Andrew Maynard, Representative Joseph Taborsak, Senator Kevin Witkos,
Representative Penny Bacchiochi and Members of the General Law Committee.

I thank you for raising H.B. 5116, An Act Concerning The Sale And Shipment Of
Hard Cider And Apple Wine, and $.B. 312, An Act Concerning The Sale Of Hard
Cider Via The Internet, for this public hearing.

One of the blessings Connecticut enjoys is the soil and climate to grow the world’s
best apples. We have made great strides in allowing our growers to market their
apples in many forms, including hard cider. There are some cider mills that have
been doing this for generations. They carry on the tradition of collecting apples
grown from family orchards to make cider. These bills simply seek to include this
distinct Connecticut group in statutes so they can better market their produce.

As such, I thank you for your consideration and hope you will support these
legislative proposals. If you have any questions, I am happy to answer them.
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Hogans Cidcr Mi"
Since 1912
bur!ington, CT

Hogans Cider Mill was established by Morris and Richard Hogan on the Hogan
Family farm in 1912. We have come to you today to ask for your support to help us take
the step into the twenty first century by allowing us to sell our Hard Cider and Apple
Wine on the internet as proposed in The Bill HB 5116 and SB 00312 as presented by
Representative John Piscopo and Senator Jonathan Harris. We who hold the four hard
cider licenses in this state are asking for the same rights and privileges which this body
has already granted to the twenty eight licensed farm wineries in the state of Connecticut.

We are small family owned businesses who produce less then one percent of the
state’s alcohol products. We are asking for a level playing field with those who produce
similar products within our state. We need to reach out and expand our retail market
beyond those who can find their way to our doors in order to keep those doors open. We
need to service those visitors who only visit our area, but want to have a taste of
Connecticut when they return home. Safeguards have been placed into the existing bill to
limit the volume of sales to no more then five gallons in a 60 day period to any one
person; we are attempting to expand our retail market only.

In the 97 years since this farm has been producing cider much has changed in the
State of Connecticut but these beautiful barns retain the rural charm that is treasured by
both residents and visitors to our state. Each year thousands make their yearly pilgrimage
to our doors. Generations of families share this familiar journey and introduce their
newest. members to the ritual that epitomizes autumn in New England. Guests from all
over the world find their way to us, and enjoy joining in the experience of partaking of
apple cider, the oldest beverage in Connecticut.

This small business has a big impact on the quality of life in our state and we need
your support to continue to move toward the future while preserving the treasures of our
past.

February 5, 2009

Theresa Clifford Dunlop

Hogans Cider Mill

522 Spielman Highway

Burlington, CT 06013

860-675-7320

Website: hoganscidermill.com --- email: info@burlingtongolfcenter.com
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“MR. BURLINGTON" DEAD AT 87
80 YEARS OF MEMORIES REMAIN

by Tom Hebert, Burlington Times

I first met Morms Hogan 1in 1974 when I stop-
ped at his cider mull after a long drive and quench-
ed a ternble thirst with the finest cider I'd ever
tasted I met the man in sauce-splashed overalls
many times but I never really hnew him After
researching this story, I wish I'd known mm bet-
ter

I'd hthe to thank Alice and Dot Szczesmak,
Many Grelo and Helen and James Mullen for shar-
ing their memortes of Morris with me

Murnis Hogen was born on February 22,
1902 and died 87 plus years later on
September 27, 1989 He saw most of what the
twentieth century had to offer and he had a lot
to offer in return. He was a farmer first, but
much of his hfe was spent in pubhc service to
Burlington and surrounding commumties. He
was also a philanthropist

He became a farmer at the age of 15 after hus
father died and he and his older brother
Richard were left to run'the farm Morris was
born 1n Harwinton and moved to Burlington in
1909 when hus father sold his Torrington store
to buy the farm. The ctder mull itself was open-
ed 1n 1912. Morns '‘graduated’’ from a one-
room schoolhouse in Burlington at the age of
12 [far left, back row in photo above) and
chose farming over high school. The fact that
he was self-educated makes his ac-
comphshments all that more mmpressive He
summed it up smply - 'l didn’t have a lot of
schooling but I had a lot of common sense '’

R WS

He got his start 1n town government in 1923,
and running as a Republican, he was elected in
1936 to the General Assembly as Burlington's
state represemative. He lost in 1940 to a
Democrat but decided to run again in 1954. In
his words, It took me a while to recover ' He
won that election and returned every year un-
til 1972 when he retired - a total of 22 years
service during which he was best known as '‘a
champion of small town causes.”” He was also
noted for his satire and wit and never prepared
speeches in advance

Ty e
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In 1932 he took over as the chairman of the
town Republican party, a post he heid onto un-
til 1973, when he was asked to serve on the
state's Central Committee which he did until
1979 He was also a member of Burlington's
Board of Selectmen for eight years and the
town's first selectman from 1951-1955 In
1973, more than 400 friends'gathered at the
Byrlington Inn for a testimomal to honor hus
accomphshments. t

¢

All the while he was devoting himself to
pubhic service, he showed himself to be a suc-
cessful businessman as well. His annual cider
mull production was more than 50,000 gallons
at one point His land ownings grew to 480
acres

His sense of humor was legendary In one
newspaper story, at the age of 82, he 1s quoted
as saywng he raises ‘’strawberries, sio corn,
pumpkins, hay, hell and wood '* Pictures of
him in his younger days testify to the fact that
he was quite capable of the one non-farm pro-
duct mentioned

Though he and his wife Mabel, who died 1n
1984, had no chuldren, he wasn't lackung for
“chuldren”” Nobody knows just how many
Burlington and Harwinton youths worked on
the farm over the years, but everyone agrees 1t
was a very large number He took a keen in-
terest in these kuds and they learned from hum.
All three of the chidren of Mr and Mrs
Mullen spent time there and feel that ‘‘thewr
values could have been so different’ had they
not had the expernence.

e e S i PSRN RS

He especially liked to attend the Lewis Mills
girls basketball games because so many of the
team members had worked for him. Before
one particular game, about five years ago, he
told the team he'd take them all out to dinner
if they won. They.did and Merris had reward-
ed the team with a post-season dinner evefy
3eason since ~ win or lose.

The man, who his friends also called *"Mr
Republican’, was geneérous in other ways as
well Two years ago,*he donated $10,000 to
Lewis Mills for scholarships. When the Burl-
ington Fire Department needed some land for
a new firehouse, he sold them some prime pro-
perty on George Washington Turnpike for a
third of 1ts market value \%Ithen he died, he left
$20,000 each to eleven realtives, friends and
employees He also left 820,000 and 1/8 of his
estate to the Immaculate Heart of Mary
Church

e




Cider mill bottles
vintage beverage

Hogans
adds
hard cider

By PAM LONGWELL
Registr Qittzen Sexdl

BURLINGTON - Alocal
cider mill 15 hotding a tra-
dldonal, colontal heverage
- hard cider

Hogans Cider Mill, a
Burlington fixture for
many years, bas just intro-
duced its owvn hard cider.
Althoagh the cider has
heen in prodaction for two

ears, this is the first year
cresa Chfford Dunlop
and Chet Dunlop have bot-
tled it and offered it to the
ablic. “Next year 1 have
ope to do apple-raspber-
ry, apple-cherry and apple-
each (hard) cider,” said
unlop. To celebrate the
new  millenninm, the
Dunlops are working on a
sparkling cider. And, for
ristmas, they will offer
a mulled hard cider.

Dunlop said that about
three ycars ago, people
started (o inquire whether
they made hard cider. She
sald, “The more I found
ont about it, the more
wateresting it was to me.”
She did some research and
lcarned that at one time,
hard cider was the most

opular beverage in New
Englnnd. And, according to
some accounts, col

This year, Chet Dunlop
estimates H;Fms Cider
Mill has hottled about 7,500

dard wine bottles of

SONJAA. 5
Theresa Clifford Dunlop of Hogans Cider in
Burlington with bottles of Hogans new hard cider.

with the mill, and contn-
ued its operation.
N Hogans Cider Mill is

brought - apple tree
seedlings to North America
for the purposes of harvest-
ing apples to make hard
cider. Dunlop's reading
reveals that in
Massachusetts in 1786, the
average per capita con-
sumption of bard cider was
30 gallons per year,

ard dScr was consid-
ercd a healthfnl drink. And,
its relative, apple cider vine-
gar, was nsed to reat a vari-
ety of ailments, including
acne, headaches, hives,
nosebleeds, sore throats
and warts.

Dunlop explained that
IyElcnl , every family kept
a barrel of hard cider in the
cellar. But, as farms started
to diminish and when
Prohibition took hold, hard
cider fell out of fashion.

Today, Chet Dunlop
satd, hard cider is the
smallest but the fastest
growing segment of the bev-
erage market 1t 1s°a very

opular drink in Europe.
ere, many pcople aren’t
very familiar with it, said
the Dunlops, but they do
bave a curosity abont it

To start producuon, the
Dunlops read many books
and wisited the only other
hard-cider winery in the
state, which is located in
Mystic. Dunlop said that
Annette Minor at Clydes
Cider Mud] has been a great
resource for her

in a white bamn,

cider. So far, they have sald
about 1,000. And, they say
customers are returning to
buy more of the golden bev-

“The more I
found out
about it, the
more
interesting it
to me,”
wafhasa@(gﬁli)'

erage The alcobol content
of 51: brew is abomt 105
percent by volume
Hogans Cider Mill bas
operated since 1908. The
Dunlops press sweet cider
in ndtrilion to operating a
bonded wanery for the pro-
duction of the hard cider
Brothers  Morris  and
Richard Hogan ran the mill
for years before the
Dunlops purchased the
roperw in 1992.
riginally, the Dunlops
bougbt the Hogan pmpu%
to use the land for a go
school (Chet Dunlop 1s also
a golf pro). But, Durlop
sald, they jnst [fell i love

which is decorated with an
array of brightly colored
wooden flowers Theresa
Dunlop, who has a back-
ground as a florist, has
luml:d thf:l rustic barn inio
a cheerful, country-style
retail outlet. Cnslom'z’rs
will find cider - hard or
sweet, pies, pastries, local-
ly produced. honey and
maple syrup, wreathes
country crafts by local
artists and the artwork of a
Senegalese family that
op and her danghter

sponsor

The bamn is flled with
interesting antiques, like an
old, enamel stove, a wooden
phone booth from tbe
offices of the The Evening
Scmln;l In é&;\,;o(:in,l :‘:11
organ donate e lo
historical soclety, and a
namber of [a photos
from the Hogan and the
Clifford families Climbing
the stairs to the npper loft,
which hstoric was the
site of Samrday night
dances, one will spy an old
straw hat sporting the mes-
sage “Re-elect Hogan" hang-
g from the rafters.

Hognns Cider Mill is
1 1, at s 2 rrl 1
High (Route 4), just a
short distance from the
Harwinton border. Dunlop
says the mill's busy season
Isnndcrw:;- running from
Labor ay  throngb
Thanksgiving.

000286

[ B - T b e



1 HE HARD S

Burlington mill

has old-time cider

with lots of kick

BURLNGTON
he sweet sap made of a blend of apples squeezed
through clath and mungled with pears, eamns its time-
honored flavar as the late sunmer and aungnn nec-

Lar — cider

Set it aside and the sugar will buhhte slowly into aleehol
as the carbonation of fermentation begina. Six monihs toa
sear later coared with sweet add™= 1< and yeast. filtered
of s brown sediments and siphoned off from harrels into
glxss bottles, the souring selzer npens to a clear bqud.

Fire they catled it tn the Last century, and muuster's
brew

Hard cider eamed his reputation ps the moonshne of
New England wikages, where the ingredients were plents-
ful and the excuse of avang vinegar an easy tall tate dup-
g Profubitlon. Instead of stills, armers sccreted kegsin
cellar holes swhere iume did the work of makng alcohol.

[n Tomngion, the tegendary urthplare of John Brown,

the Rev Samtel

Orewnt supposed
Gomy o S
Chronicies for and
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The brew, ance as cummon as beer, s really irot so sin-
Ister, sy contemparary aflctonadas who are working to
revive the ol rectpes.

Wendell Gunn remembers them, he s1ys stuling, ot
qtute looking you m the eye. His glance s just enough to
fuige whether you re part of a huny-up generauon, No
one rushes the man m Al green work pants.

MSI,Gmmts\llnalmnywptshuu:cashmg&cr
keys at Hogan's Clder Mill, where he has worked since
1943 He s been a fixture and a resuurce ever since. So
Gunns expertence proved cruaal when the bewrs of mas-
ter clder pressinan Mormis Hogan snld the mult and 17
acres mn 1992 to Theresa Cfford Dunlop and Chet Duntop
Ir

It s t culer farming, though, that saved the scenue hill-
sules along Route 4 oeruss from Johnnyeake Alrport from
development uito ten house lots.

It was golf That's right, putitng greens.

“‘hmhelmlmngwalcnbmuhomnudebm.
Chet —a PGA gnlfpml‘osionnlmmedoneumwlup
three teachers in the state by Golf Maganne — is grving
lessans. Hogan's Cider Ml remams a quaint retal store
wh!d;abudfmupformlehunm—mwn squashes and
pumplans, locally made cvafts a9 wells s Theresa s floral
dsmBmlnmpahuedmmmlnmﬂgouhgmes
portray the farm's more profitable If duat identity as the
Burlington Golf Center, home of the New England School
of Galf

mDumups'dedsnnhsuwlomsmrehmdudﬂw
the shelves recently produced some of the first batch of
mmlmrmmﬂopn:umurmymudﬂml-
Il:mlhesmelosemr!pmwrsmeﬂndftdemmlmhnt
Thhrmnmﬂmnmpzmﬂuhnukemdmnmhmd
sun.mumcuermumumumemuymm
siarted by Annette Miner's great grandfather in the last
century

The apples arrive from a handfiy) of selected lucal grow-
ers ke Peter Hayward and fram New York State Morms
I’ndaﬂ}‘lng—farmlhefnrnmmtﬂmfmn.mhmm’er
planted an orchard. Theresa sud.

Old cider recipes favor the addition of hany, 1ant apples
and 2 batance of vartetles such as the rare and
hamely Golden Russetr. Pears serve the same purpuse as a

" RUTHMAN: Hard cider makes

Casey Keil Hipwblican-Amrericun

Chet Dunlop of Hagan's Cider 3ill in Burlington cheeks an alr calce on a barrel of fermenting cider

sweetness elixir, though no une here will say st what the
secvet recipe includes

The nuxture is grownd e a pulp called punwaee and
pressed 1n layered ran ks separaied by clath A bishel of
apples produces three gallons of Ixpuid which tums quick
Iy from a aulky amber to hrown as it Is exposed to ur

The process of aging ks stopped by sulfites,

The uncorked taste 1s al so sublune, a combinaen of
the canples v ors of & «ny Beawjolws or ean de vin with
a hint of vinegar that old tuners say Yo stap smonctng olce
Youget usedto it

Onve Gunn saul, e ery famier stashed a barre] ar (wo
mthe cellar Apples and kegs were deln ered regutardy
every fall to the aull. There was 4 time, Tormngton Histord
«at Soctetv Dirvetar Mark Mk hem <abd that dnnkang

It actually doesnl deserve is reputs.

£t ma of hand, In the Late 1708y, e merage per cyuta
cotsumpiion of hand clder was 50 gallons Theresa ssud
reading from a cider malang book, The Auw nean Clder
Ruouk, hy Vrest Orton. Anul per capiia it win, from staves ty
presidents,

The pendulum of temperanc swung bk eardier this
centuny A generl ntolernee for dnukants, whe 1ok up
adding rum (o the inexpensine dnnk, lwdped bing abuin o
prutehition for aleohal Dnnking w.is retmn od to ~hrowk
ed b k ooms and from o rson stasdies defended more
than onee by shoiguns,

Gunn suid Hogan, who keamend from his father aul ulder
brother how to press apples n 1912, reacched 1l poiw om

Plense turu ta 4A%, RUTINAN

a comeback

to Profutation. Hard crder sul) repse

Continved from 1A¢

Tus own murh bater. Hopan died 10 years

agnai the age of &9 a fan uf both hand
and 0ft cxders tan not atevhal for sale
A mzn came m, bought o gailon and

Su down ta dnnk 1, Gunn recatled. “He

nmkmmunsrnnl)mmrhlnc\m

une ahout what o woukd do o you, it1s 3
laxatn e yoo knnw He stopped sellig n

that day but always ke a b in the
cellag*

tion for upseung digestion. It o imgerop-
ety fermented hrew thar can sour o
stomach.

Produrtion was greatest asinond 158
when one farmer madke 300 harreds in
Tonmgron, Ovcunt wine

There nere dozens of pulls thoough-
out Burtingion and Tormngion, mtuding
one a1 Braruly Hall whuch procuced amle
Lram|

fy
In the wrend of mucrohrew enes, c1der
mulls are rectumng a market piche e

sents less than ane perrent of the total
s3les of ajcehul, tra demand has sk .
rocketed sinee U0 and 1s the Cistes:
gusing alceholic dnnk aecarding 1o
epests who publish the Wine Spectator

In Murbingon, there are plans o cne
ate a bubthy champagie cider ot quite
 ime fur ihe gulleunu,

Brgutte Ruthan i3 chief of the Re
publican Amencan s Litehficld County
hurean in Tormagton
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